
 
General Business                                      Lower Saucon Township                                           November 21, 2007 
& Developer                                                      Council Minutes                                                              7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, November 21, 2007 at 7:10 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, 

Sandra Yerger and Ron Horiszny, Council Members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Assistant 
Township Manager, Leslie Huhn, Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; Township Solicitor, Linc Treadwell; 
and Township Planner, Judy Stern Goldstein.. 

     
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council met in Executive Session to discuss 
personnel issues and litigation with Heritage. 

  
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 
receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Diane, Leslie, or Jack or call the Township 
office.  Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern asked if 
anything was taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said IV A, IESI Bethlehem Landfill. 

   
III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

  
A. REPRESENTATIVE KAREN BEYER 

 
Mr. Kern said Representative Karen Beyer would like to provide Council with a legislative update. 

 
Ms. Beyer said there is a lot happening in the State house.  She’d like to visit each municipality 
every six months.  In July, they passed a state budget, but it took 18 days beyond their 
constitutionally mandated time to pass it as the Governor had proposed seven different tax and fee 
increases.  He wanted to wrap the budget into energy proposals and transportation.  When that 
happened, the General Assembly went nutty and it went back and forth.  The PA economy is 
healthy.  We had an $8 million surplus so we didn’t have to raise taxes.  Large part of the $8 
million went to increased funding for education.  We are spending from state monies of $5-1/2 
billion in education every year.  It is the second largest line item, the first being public welfare, 
public and medical assistance.  They were able to put increases in public libraries.  Much of the 
surplus comes from increased gas taxes.  They passed a transportation budget, and she was one of 
the affirmative votes on that.  She wanted to preserve the transportation projects that were on the 
slate for the Lehigh Valley, so a couple of them made sure those projects were preserved.  Lanta is 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 2 of 12 

in her district, and Lanta is a very important mass system, and there was a significant increase, 
same with Septa and the Port Authority in Pittsburgh.  The encouragement of mass transit is 
important to all of the communities across the state.  DCED grants was another good year for her.  
She’s probably sitting on about $500,000 in just department of community and economic grants in 
the 131st.  She brought back about $6 million into the district for various projects.  In the five, ten 
and twenty five thousand dollar grant range, she brought back about that much, so she has another 
round and would like the township to participate in a $5,000 or $10,000 grant, so think of 
something good you’d like to do.  Mrs. deLeon said she has done some paperwork and will submit 
it within the next few weeks.  Ms. Beyer said they will receive the check very soon then.  She said 
Bob Freeman is chairing the township and the chairman of the local government committee in the 
House.  Bob is the perfect guy for that job as there is no one in either party that knows municipal 
and the MPC better than Bob does.  He introduced a bill on municipalities to institute a moratorium 
on development and to alter their comprehensive plan. She’s supportive of this bill.  This is not 
being about anti development.  Any legislator has to balance the needs of what development does 
for the economy and the Lehigh Valley is the engine of the state’s economy right now and the 
development is part of that.  Bob told her that the bill has been amended several times and it’s not 
going to be easy for municipalities to institute the moratorium.  It’s more for showing of proof and 
a need and the moratorium will be on a designated time frame.  It will give municipalities some 
level of relief like Lower Saucon, Upper Saucon and Upper Macungie.   Bob is terrific to work 
with, and he’s trying to do a good job.    

 
Ms. Beyer sits on the Liquor Control Committee and as they do have grocery stores in Lower 
Saucon,   right now stores like Sheetz can purchase a restaurant license and sell beer.  It can be a 
sales place for six packs or twelve packs.  Wegman’s may have a store in PA that does it already.  
She has come to the belief it is not a good thing for PA.  She believes in preserving the distributor 
of liquor as it currently exists in PA today.  There is a move in Harrisburg to prioritize liquor and 
it’s going quickly.  We could see Super Fresh or Giant selling beer or wine.  They may see some 
movement on it next year.  The clerk would be carding people at the checkout.  At Sheetz, there’s a 
separate checkout for liquor.  The fear is that you have five major beer producers in the country.  
The concern is they will take over.  PA is extraordinary that they have the most number of micro 
brewers in the country and we fear they will go out of business as the biggies come in.  When you 
go to Florida and buy beer in a grocery store, all you see are the biggies.  You don’t see the smaller 
brewery beer being sold.  These are small businessmen that could see their businesses die.  There is 
a proposition of package reform where a distribution can break a case down to a six pack and that 
might level the playing field. It’s an issue that is rapidly moving. 
 
EIT tax collection - they just completed a costing out study that was performed for the General 
Assembly to find out how much it costs to educate a child in PA.  Some of us didn’t like what we 
saw.  The costing out study says it costs about $12,000 to educate a child in PA.  We know there 
are many school districts where they are educating for much less.  In our general area, that’s not the 
case, but Allentown is in the $9,000 range and Saucon Valley is at about $12,000 range, but there 
are some as low as $7,000.  They talked about increasing expenditures of $3 billion a year for just 
education and that is overwhelming of increasing education.  The costing out study, as well as a 
few months ago, the Department of Community and Economic Development put out a proposal and 
the costing study is in agreement with it that we should get rid of tax collectors and move to a 
single tax collection area within the county.  There would be 67 tax collections administrated out of 
the county for all county and school districts related to the EIT.  It would save the taxpayers 
millions of dollars across the state.  She doesn’t know where she is at for this issue.  There is some 
level of momentum given that they are revisiting school district property tax reform in the state to 
eliminate them.  A proposal like this has some level of impact.  They will be in session for three 
weeks in February.   We have a highly ineffective Federal Government that is not functioning, a 
President highly unpopular, a war that people are not happy with and a congress who is 
dysfunctional so our whole federal government is in dysfunction.  The state is now talking about 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 3 of 12 

issues we weren’t talking about before.  When she ran for office, she wasn’t talking about a law for 
illegal immigration, now the state is talking about health care for the State of PA, illegal 
immigration for the State of PA and an energy policy for the State of PA.  Those are federal issues.  
The Federal Government is cutting its payments to the state and it will be felt by school districts 
and municipalities.  Our transportation dollars will be affected…any area that the federal 
government gives money.  She doesn’t know how long we can afford $3.00 for a gallon of gas and 
a 40% increase in our electric bills. Our district includes the City of Allentown and it was important 
in that budget to preserve the transportation projects that were on the slate for the Lehigh Valley, so 
a couple of them made sure those projects were preserved.  Lanta is in her district.  Lanta is a very 
important mass transit system and there was a significant increase in the budget for Lanta.    

 
Mr. Kern said we are just finishing our budget and an issue that hit home was libraries as we are a 
member of the Bethlehem Public Library and this year it was $160,000 we paid to the library and 
now it’s at a point we are asking how many residents are actually participating in the library and is 
it really worth it.  If all the municipalities say it’s not worth it, what will happen to the library.  Ms. 
Beyer said there was a 3% increase for libraries.  Mr. Kern said our amount went up 3.6% for the 
library funding.  Mrs. Yerger said that Ms. Koehler said they got less from the state.  Ms. Beyer 
said she will follow up with Lynn Koehler about this.  She thought it was a great achievement of 
this budget…the libraries. 

 
Mrs. deLeon said the fire companies need more help with the funding of equipment. Ms. Beyer said 
they put aside a separate amount of money for the fire companies.  She gave to all of her fire 
companies, EMS, and ambulances in her area.  They set up a separate amount for fire companies 
for grants.  When she gave $5,000 to Se-Wy-Co, they got new boots.  The grant she is offering you 
is separate than the one she offered Se-Wy-Co.  She thought it was about $35 million for a new 
fund set up, but she will check on that.  

    
Mr. Horiszny said if there are things like license plate rebates, or something like that to help the fire 
companies to recruit more and keep more volunteers...even tax rebates, anything that would help.  
She said they have a grant now that if a college kid is a fireman, he gets some money.  She will 
check on that also. 

 
Mr. Horiszny said House Bill No. 1839, on container deposits for bottles, cans, water bottles in 
particular, if she could help support it, that would be great.  He’s talking about nickel or dime 
deposits.  Also enabling better recycling is an issue. 

 
Ms. Beyer said the Sands BethWorks came to visit the legislature.  There is a proposal to move to 
table games.  Sands is suggesting if they get table games as well, they will add an estimated 885 
jobs with table games.  Of the 885, they plan on having 200 of them for the table games.  Mayor 
Callahan talked about the $90 million for proposed road improvements down there and the Sands is 
giving $2 million towards the Five Points project alone.  Mayor Callahan had a press conference 
down there.  There was nothing for 378.  Mr. Maxfield asked if any of the $90 million included 
412?  Ms. Beyer said she didn’t know, $90 million sounds low if 412 would be included.  Mr. 
Maxfield said that is another major access way.  Mrs. deLeon said when they met with a PennDOT 
person, they were talking about a one way on Broadway.  That was just in planning stages at that 
point and not a definite.   Mr. Cahalan said we are in the process of talking to the county about the 
host fee with the arrangement.  It’s a little bit lower because Lehigh County and Allentown is 
getting some under the revenue sharing.  Senator Boscola had language put in there that the priority 
would be given to the municipalities that were contiguous to the city of Bethlehem.  We are starting 
to talk to them about the impacts and will look for funding from the host fee that is going to 
Northampton County.  We hope they see that the municipalities next to the city are going to feel the 
most impact and may be talking to Ms. Beyer about this.  Mrs. deLeon said she went to Lisa’s 
office and met with her and really fought to get “adjacent municipalities” in there.  We got the 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 4 of 12 

word in there, and she had questioned County Council and they are going to have to decide how 
much is given to who and what is the percentage.  They said it’s supposed to be given to the 
adjacent municipalities.  There is a meeting on December 10 and they’ve invited the adjacent 
municipalities to attend and her question is going to be that the plan is not working the way it 
should be working…adjacent is adjacent…and it is what it is.  They can’t determine their own 
procedure against already established law.  Ms. Beyer said on the slots, it’s 57% tax.  The tables 
weren’t there when they legalized the gambling.  They’ve tried to do some clean up issues and one 
bill came out that persons playing the slots get one free drink.  There is a proposal now for table 
games.  What Sands and others are already lobbying, they only want 15% tax on the tables and a 
different tax on the slots.  None of these casinos would have come into the State of PA with just 
slots.  This money was designated for the seniors for property tax.   

 
Mrs. Yerger said when they first instituted the lottery, that was supposed to satisfy and cure all the 
needs of the senior citizens and their real estate taxes.  Has it fixed it…no.  Ms. Beyer said they 
funded a lot of the money from the lottery for this gaming, now they have to pay it back.  We have 
a local legislator who has introduced legislation about the criminal background checks of these 
casino operators and that’s getting absolutely blocked.  It’s disappointing.  If she votes, she’ll vote 
for 57% on the tables.  PA has a huge senior population and there was no adjustment for them.  
They are on fixed incomes and now they have to pay $3.00 for gas for their car and they are going 
to look at higher electric bills.  She doesn’t know how to begin to promise them something that she 
could deliver.  Mr. Maxfield said a lot can’t wait for the casinos to come in.  Mrs. Beyer said these 
casinos might get a shock that these senor people can’t gamble because they don’t have any money.  
Mrs. deLeon said Mt. Airy revenues were down after the casino opened.  Mr. Maxfield said they 
are not talking about reducing the number of slots, they are going to have table games.  What 
happens to all of their community impact studies and traffic studies.  These things need to be 
restudied.  Mrs. Beyer said she has a Democrat in Philadelphia and his community just hates the 
casino as the traffic is just terrible.  Just like 378, no road improvements were planned for that 
area...bumper to bumper, the street by Dave & Buster’s.  He is having a war with the Governor 
right now.  Again, another community severely impacted by the casinos coming in.  Nobody is 
listening, PennDOT did nothing, so we’re not alone.  The casinos need at least 102 House members 
to vote for their tax scheme.  Mr. Maxfield said they may get it because someone who lives 100 
miles from here, doesn’t care and they will see the additional money coming in, he can see it just 
flying through.  She said there are good people and maybe that’s what this government needs, 
purging.  The damage to the institution will take a long time to heal, like a mini Watergate.  

 
Mr. Kern said he does enjoy a beer now and then, and it’s usually a micro brewed beer.  The case 
system drives him crazy in PA as if he wants to try a micro brewed, he has to buy a whole case, 
take one sip and then finds out he doesn’t like it.  The six pack system would be great.  Ms. Beyer 
said she will vote for package reform giving the ability for the beer distributor’s to break it down to 
a six pack.   

 
Ms. Beyer said her door is always open if anyone ever needs to talk to her.    

 
II. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

 
A. IESI BETHLEHEM LANDFILL – APPLEBUTTER ROAD – DISCUSSION REGARDING 

BASIN 7 DISCHARGE PIPE AND RELOCATED RECYLING DROP-OFF AREA 
 

Mr. Kern said the applicant has requested that the Township review a revision to their approved 
storm water management system and recycling drop-off area. 

 
TAKEN OFF THE AGENDA. 

 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 5 of 12 

B. JILL MICKLEY – 2634 EASTON ROAD – DISCUSSION REGARDING APPROVAL OF 
PLANNING MODULE 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant has a malfunctioning sewage system.  The Township Engineer has 
reviewed the proposed sewage facilities planning module and has determined the entire site is 
within a FEMA floodplain. 

 
Mr. Kocher said after we found out it was in the floodplain, the ordinance does not prohibit the 
sewage system in the floodplain, it just has to be elevated and flood proof.  They contacted the 
system designer and said they have to show flood plain elevations and how the system will be flood 
proofed.  The zoning ordinance is another concern as it prohibits piping and flood plain 
disturbance.  They were going to go in and discuss it with Chris on how to handle those issues.  
They are still not in a position to act on this.   No one was present representing the Mickley’s on 
this agenda item.  He said Staff should contact Ms. Mickley and give an extension.  We’re still 
okay, but time is getting into the holidays.  Mr. Maxfield said the notation on the plan said it was a 
chemical treatment system.  Do you have any concerns other than what DEP allows, about a 
chemical treatment as opposed to a peat treatment system that is close to the creek?  Mr. Kocher 
said it will have to be flood proof and be above the flood elevation.  Chlorine is the primary 
disinfectant and DEP allows that.  The amount of chlorine is not like in a big sewage treatment 
plant.  If we have a major flood event, the chlorine would not hurt the creek.  Mrs. Yerger said they 
just presented a map and right there on the other property across the street, they had tested the 
water and it came out really, really pure.  There are sections of the Saucon Creek now that they are 
talking about upgrading their water quality, will that be an impact?  Mr. Kocher said it will at 
DEP’s level if that changes when they get their permit.  If the stream designation goes to high 
quality, DEP may not allow sewage discharge like that, but he’s not sure.   

 
Mr. Kocher said there is no action except for staff  to request an extension.   

 
C. REVIEW STATUS OF DAVID DYER LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT – 1800 COAL YARD 

ROAD 
 

Mr. Kern said the applicant is requesting approval of a lot line change/lot consolidation which 
enlarges three (3) existing lots, with the consolidation of a fourth lot.  The applicant is proposing a 
conservation easement. 

 
Mr. Steve Turoscy, Lehigh Engineering and Ron Bracalente, were present.  Mr. Turoscy said they 
are requesting a waiver to consider it a type B.  Mr. Cahalan said this was just put on for discussion 
and not for any township action.  Mr. Turoscy said the client wanted to ask for conditional approval 
tonight.  Mr. Bracalente said revised plans were submitted today.  Attorney Treadwell said no one 
has reviewed them yet.  Mr. Kern said it would be best if Staff reviewed the plans that came in 
today and have them come back at the December 5 meeting. Mr. Maxfield said the property owners 
listed on the map need to be updated.  Mr. Bracalente said he updated them on the new submission.  
Mr. Turoscy said all the items were addressed.  They would like to bring this to conclusion by the 
end of the year because of financial impacts.  If they could get it done on December 5, that would 
be fine.   

 
D. CREEKSIDE MARKETPLACE – ROUTE 412 – RELEASE OF MAINTENANCE 

SECURITY 
 

Mr. Kern said the developer has requested the maintenance period be terminated for this land 
development.  An inspection of the site has been done and staff is recommending rejecting the 
request to end the maintenance.  However, a partial release of the maintenance security is 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 6 of 12 

recommended for the punch list completed to date in the amount of $128,546.00.  Improvement 
security in the amount of $4,213.00 should be retained until the project completion. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO 

REJECT THE REQUEST TO END MAINTENANCE AND TO 
AUTHORIZE A MAINTENANCE SECURITY REDUCTION FOR 

CREEKSIDE MARKETPLACE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
FOR NOVEMBER 21, 2007 

LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP COUNCIL MEETING 
 

The LST staff recommends that the Township Council approve a reduction in the required security 
for the Creekside Marketplace Land Development in the amount of $128,546.00. 

 
Subject, however, to the following conditions: 

 
1. An Improvements Security in the amount of $4,213.00 shall remain in full force and effect 

until project completion or the expiration date of the existing Improvements Security to the 
satisfaction of the Township Solicitor.  This amount includes the $1,375 indicated in the 
HEA letter of November 15, 2007 and $2,838 retainage in the Boucher & James Inc. letter 
of November 14, 2007. 

2. The owner shall pay any outstanding plans and appears account invoices owed to the 
Township. 

 
Mr. Kocher said the Brien Kocher’s letter of November 15 explains what needs to be done on this.  
Ms. Stern Goldstein said their recommendation is incorporated into Brien Kocher’s 
recommendation.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval, per the staff recommendation of November 21, 2007. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. REVIEW OF STRAY ANIMAL POLICY 
 

Mr. Kern said a draft stray animal policy has been prepared for Council’s review due to the 
revisions with the Center for Animal Health & Welfare (formerly the SPCA) guidelines for stray 
animal pick-ups. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said they are trying to have a consistent policy that they can put out to residents.  They 
have a contract with the Center for Animal Health and Welfare.  They will pick up stray dogs, but 
not cats.  The cats will be trapped, neutered and be taken back to where they were picked up.  To 
make sure that the same cat was not taken in, they take a notch out of the cat’s ear.  There’s a lot of 
information he obtained about this program and it’s a nationally recognized program for centers 
that are no kill centers that do not euthanize animals.  They feel this policy will eventually work 
and the number of feral cats will decrease.  Mr. Maxfield said what about people who have cats on 
their property and their cat comes back with a notch on their ear.  Mr. Cahalan said normally they 
call the police and the police try to find out if it’s someone’s cat.  Vanessa Segaline said the one 
test they do is the chip, if you do have an animal, it tells everything about the animal.  If the animal 
is usually an “outside” home cat, it’s friendlier than other cats.   
 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 7 of 12 

Mrs. deLeon said it is not the SPCA, it should say (formerly the SPCA).  
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of the Stray Animal Policy. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. REVIEW OF JUNIOR COUNCIL PERSON PROGRAM POLICY 
 

Mr. Kern said a draft policy outlining the operation of the Junior Council Person Program in the 
Township has been prepared by the Manager for Council’s review and adoption. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said this program has been in place for several years.  He put this together as the 
Principal of the High School wanted some guidelines and policy.  Mrs. deLeon said she initiated 
the program in April 2002 and the township was provided a flyer.  Mr. Cahalan said that’s where 
he got a lot of information. Mrs. deLeon said for the meetings, they should follow the same dates as 
their administrative code, so they should include at all board meetings including special and budget 
minutes.  This should also pertain to the Planning Commission and EAC meetings.   Mrs. deLeon 
said this has been a good project.   
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the Junior Council person appointment policy, with 
changes.  

SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

C. JUNIOR COUNCIL PERSON APPOINTMENTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the Township Manager is recommending that Georgiana Torrella, a senior at Saucon 
Valley School District (SVSD), be appointed as Junior Council Person representative to the 
Township Council for one (1) year term with the 2007-2008 school year and that Vanessa Segaline, 
also a senior at SVSD, be appointed as Junior Planning Commission representative for a one (1) 
year term for this school year. 
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Georgiana Torrella as the Junior Council person and 
Vanessa Segaline, the Planning Commission representative for a one (1) year term for the 
school year. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

D. REVIEW OF DRAFT COUNCIL POLICY REGARDING REQUESTS FROM 
COMMITTEES/BOARDS 

 
Mr. Kern said Council requested that staff draft a policy outlining how requests from 
committees/boards will be addressed by the Township Council. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said it explains how requests would come in from committees and boards and how 
council would treat those requests.   
 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 8 of 12 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the draft Council policy regarding requests from 
committees and boards.   

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

E. APPROVAL OF CAPITAL BLUE CROSS CONTRACTS 
 

Mr. Kern said annual approval of the contracts the Township has with Capital Blue Cross for h 
health insurance provided to Township employees is required. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said they are asked every year to sign these contracts. 
 
Mrs. deLeon said what about the non uniformed contract which expires at the end of this year?  Mr. 
Cahalan said if that is changed, this can be amended.  They did check with Capital Blue Cross and 
it doesn’t restrict them.   
 
Mr. Dan Andrews asked what was the annual cost and how many employees does this cover?  Mr. 
Cahalan said they gave him the financial information with the 2008 Budget press release and the 
health insurance covers 42 employees. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of the Capital Blue Cross contracts. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

F. APPROVAL OF 2008 MEETING DATES 
 
Mr. Kern said a list of the meeting dates for the various Township Council’s Commissions and 
Committees has been prepared for Council’s review and approval prior to advertising the dates for 
2008. 
 
Mrs. deLeon said according to PSATS, the first Monday of the year would be January 7 for the 
reorganization meeting, so the meeting date of January 2 should be changed to January 7. 
 
Mrs. deLeon asked Leslie if they could put the Saucon Valley Partnership meetings on the sheet 
also.   
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the meeting dates, with changes. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 7,  2007 MINUTES 
 

Mr. Kern said the minutes of the November 7, 2007 minutes have been prepared and are ready for 
Council’s approval. 

 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 9 of 12 

Mr. Horiszny said page 3, line 36, north board should be “northbound”.  Page 6, line 16, should be 
10 feet, not 100 feet.  Page 7,  line 24 should spell out Mr. Hijazi instead of Haz.  Page 8, line 34 
and 42, Alan should be “Allan”.  Page 11, line 1, “relieve” should be “leave”.  Page 21, line 42, 
there’s a big gap in there and he tried to research it and couldn’t find it.  Mr. Cahalan said they will 
get that from Cathy Gorman.  Page 23, line 26, executive should be “execution”.  Page 25, line 19, 
it says “the distance of the polls, Linc said that’s what the state indicated about 10 feet away from 
the polls”, it should say “at least ten feet away from the polls”.  Page 25, line 25, it should be 4-0-1 
(Mr. Horiszny – Abstained). 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of the November 7, 2007 minutes, with corrections. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 2007 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Mr. Kern said the October 7, 2007 financial reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 
review and approval. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of the October 2007 financial reports. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT / CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 None 
 
VIII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 

 Mr. Cahalan said if you noticed the leaves are not falling off your trees, so they’ve 
extended the dates of the compost center to the weekends of December 7 and 8, and 
December 14 and 15.  Christmas trees can be dropped off in January.  They will put out 
notices in the paper and the newsletter. 

 Mr. Cahalan said he received a communication from Mr. Wise on the Heller Homestead 
National Register nomination process. He called him about the cost and Mr. Wise sent him 
back an email that he didn’t have a firm figure as he was awaiting direction from the 
PHMC on what process he had to follow for this nomination.  When he gets direction, he 
will get in touch with us.  The cost will be more than the $4,999 estimate he previously 
gave us.  Mr. Cahalan is recommending that Bob come back to Council and discuss the 
process and the cost.   

 Mr. Cahalan said that Council was given a copy of an email from Charlie Luthar who got 
in touch with the gentlemen from the City of Bethlehem about the joint enterprise zone that 
we were going into with Hellertown, Freemansburg and the City of Bethlehem.  The City is 
going to go ahead with the application to DCED.  After they get approval, they will amend 
the application and make it a multi-municipal zone. Mrs. deLeon asked to get this put on 
the SVP meeting in December. 

 Chris Garges has indicated there has been several requests for variances from residents 
who have fences, gates and walls on their property.  Section 180-97 of the zoning 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 10 of 12 

ordinance, he feels, could use some updating and some review by Boucher & James to 
bring it up to speed. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval as stated above by Mr. Cahalan. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

 Mr. Cahalan said he sent around some information that the barn that was at 2038 Polk 
Valley Road has been dismantled and the pig pen is gone. They were able to save timbers 
and wood from the barn and they are stored at the township.  He’s looking for direction on 
how Council wants to proceed with the wood that was recovered.  They saved significant 
architectural pieces from the barn.  The Lower Saucon Historical Society requested some 
timbers.  The bulk load of wood they have has value, and he is trying to determine how 
much.  He’d like to put it up for sale at an auction.  Council said that was a good idea.  He 
will come up with a base price and will develop some contacts in that area.  Mrs. deLeon 
said she would like the ladders for the barn at the Heller Homestead.  Mr. Cahalan said 
sure, they are secured at the Township and she can have them.  He said now that the barn 
and pig pen have been dismantled, you have the house.  What does Council want to do with 
the future of that house?  It was inspected by a building inspector.  The septic is an issue.  
Mr. Maxfield said what about auctioning it off? We have to go through some subdivision 
process so most can be used for the park.  Mrs. deLeon said you auction the house off on a 
parcel of land, what’s the minimum lot size.  Mr. Cahalan said they’d have to allow for an 
on lot septic system.  Mr. Maxfield said the upstairs windows are still open and should be 
boarded up.  Mr. Cahalan said they will take care of that.  Mrs. Yerger said have our 
engineers look into this and come back with some options. Mr. Maxfield said we should 
keep the subdivision to the absolute minimum so we can maximize as much property to the 
park as we can.  Mrs. deLeon said we’d have to meet our ordinance.  Mr. Maxfield said we 
could waive that part.  Mrs. deLeon said that would not set a good precedent to the 
residents.  We need to meet our own regs.  Mr. Maxfield said he’d rather not add acreage 
on to a building lot that could be used for recreation right there.  Attorney Treadwell said 
they can come up with a staff recommendation.  Mrs. deLeon said she will not support any 
waivers of not meeting our township regs when it comes to subdividing of this property.  
Mrs. Yerger said one of the questions that came up when Jack Cahalan was nice enough to 
supply the history of the house, it is attractive, but would it be a property that would be 
appropriate to request a facade easement on it, to preserve the exterior of the building as it 
does have a historic appearance.  It has been altered to some degree already, so maybe Bob 
Wise can look into this.  Mr. Maxfield said that could also echo in the auction specifying 
that it not be sold as property, but as a house, to remain a house.  Mrs. Yerger said it does 
have some very attractive features to it.  Mr. Maxfield said it needs some spouting, etc.   

 Mr. Cahalan said Chamber light up is this Friday night, November 23 at 6:00 PM in 
Hellertown. 

 
B. TOWNSHIP COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL MEMBER 
 

Mrs. Yerger 
 Nothing to report 

 
Mr. Maxfield 

 Nothing to report 
 
Mr. Kern 

 Nothing to report 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 11 of 12 

Mrs. deLeon 
 It’s been awhile since we received any annual reports as it’s a requirement. When are we 

going into get them?  Mr. Cahalan said they had almost two of them completed before the 
Administrative Assistant left.  If we fill this position, they will get back to work on that.  
Mrs. deLeon said it should be put in an end-of-the-year document. 

 She asked about the SVP Power Point presentation that Jack had indicated he could put on 
the Township website. She asked if the Saucon Valley Partnership could get a separate link 
on the website.  Leslie said yes, it would cost $150. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved to include the expense and add another button on the side that would have 

the SVP on the website. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Mr. Horiszny 
 He attended the local government summit that Bob Freeman sponsored over in Easton.  He 

sat with Charlie Luthar and Jenna and Mike McKenna. 
 He said he has for the Landfill Committee the Seneca landfill information and the power 

unit that IESI’s parent company is putting up in New York, and they invited him to attend, 
but he won’t be able to attend.  

 
C. SOLICITOR 

 Attorney Treadwell said the Martha Chase litigation is scheduled for April 14, 2008. 
 

D. ENGINEER 
 He brought the final layout for Polk Valley Road and 412 for Jack to review with the 

Borough Manager. If they are okay with it, they’ll be back with a resolution for Council to 
support the traffic signal. 

 They looked at the intersection of Black River Road and Bingen for site distance.  The site 
distance is okay there, but there should be some brush be trimmed and you might want to 
do it yourself.  They do not have it striped right as the stop bar is too far back.  Jack should 
send PennDOT a letter to look at the stop bar. 

 They looked at the Hess station on Black River Road entrance, and they can’t close that 
because it would just make that area more dangerous, so they don’t recommend you do 
that.  There’s not enough space if you would want to put a no left turn sign there and would 
create a lot of confusion there.   

 Speed bumps on Black River Road, they don’t recommend that as a speed control device.  
Mrs. deLeon said what about rumble strips.  Mr. Kocher said then you need a sign saying 
rumble strips.   

 
E. PLANNER 

 Nothing to report.      
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to adjourn.  The time was 9:00 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Attorney Treadwell 
said aren’t we going back into Executive session?  Mr. Kern said yes.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting 
November 21, 2007 
 

Page 12 of 12 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to re-convene.  The time was 9:01 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to adjourn.  The time was 9:20 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand.     

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 

 


